
Flag Salute

Public Hearings

Public Comment

Executive Session

Minutes Tab A Approval Introduction X Action X

Mayor Comments

Staff Reports Tab B Dan Glenn

Tab C Todd Baun

Old Business Tab D Electric Rate Study Proposals Introduction Action X

New Business Tab E Marijuana Hearing Examiner Report Introduction X Action X

FOP Contract Introduction X Action X

Ordinances Tab F Development Agreement Introduction X Action

Tab G Civil Service Modification Introduction X Action

Resolutions Tab H Permissive Use Update Introduction X Action

Approval of Vouchers Introduction X Action X

Mayor Council Comments

Public Comments

Executive Session

Please turn off Cell Phones- Thank you
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Accomodation is Provided Upon Request

The City of McCleary is an equal opportunity provider and employer.

La ciudad de McCleary es un proveedor de igualdad de oportunidades y el empleador

McCleary City Council 
Agenda

Adjournment or Recess Meeting

January 27th, 2016- 7:00 PM

Roll Call: ___Pos. 1- Orffer, ___Pos. 2- Vessey, ___ Pos. 3- Peterson, ___ Pos. 4- Blankenship, ___ Pos. 5- Ator

Workshop 6:30 PM-  Mark Daniels- Watershed Group- Shoreline Management Plan



                                CITY OF MCCLEARY

                       Regular City Council Meeting

                      Wednesday, January 13, 2016

ROLL CALL AND FLAG SALUTE Councilmember's Orffer, Vessey, Peterson, Blankenship and Ator were in attendance.

ABSENT None.

STAFF PRESENT Present at the meeting were Todd Baun, Wendy Collins, George Crumb, Paul Nott and Dan 
Glenn.

PUBLIC HEARING None.

PUBLIC COMMENT Laurie Mansmith and her husband own rentals in McCleary and three out of four of their 
renters are on fixed incomes. She stated other areas are lower in cost for utilities and she 
wants the city to consider turning the power over to the PUD. She said with holes in the streets 
and flooding around town, it makes her wonder where the money is going.

Jill VanWormer is upset because she is trying to renovate a house that she is not living in and 
she still pays $350 a month for utilities, which she is only using a small portion of the time. 
She said it's preventing people from moving to McCleary.

Mayor Schiller responded by saying the Council is getting ready to do a utility rate study of the 
light and power. Also, the infrastructure cost is high and we have a low amount of rate payers, 
causing the individual rate payer to pay more than larger communities.

Todd Baun said the City rates are tied to bonds and loans that were used to make required 
improvements to the treatment plant and the well system. The improvements were needed to 
keep the utilities operating. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION Mayor Pro Tem Schiller called for an executive session at 7:14 pm to discuss collective 
bargaining for 20 minutes or less. The executive session ended at 7:34 pm. No action was 
taken.

MINUTES APPROVED It was moved by Councilmember Peterson, seconded by Councilmember Vessey to 

approve the December 9, 2015 minutes. Motion Carried 5-0.

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT Dan Glenn provided a written report for the Council and is available, if they have any 
questions. 

MAYOR'S COMMENTS Mayor Schiller had a meeting with Dru Garson from Greater Grays Harbor Inc. last Friday and 
was told that the steel mill plant is still being considered. They are looking for another investor 
after one backed out. They are still intending on moving forward with the plant as soon as 
some of the issues are worked out. GGHI is also working with the University of Washington to 
get a few student interns to come to the harbor to help out small cities with research projects 
while working toward obtaining their MPA. They are going to provide 200 hours to the City of 
McCleary to help write a strategic plan and mission statement. 

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 
REPORT

Todd Baun provided a written report for the Council and is available, if they have any 
questions.

GENERAL PACIFIC PURCHASE 
ORDER

Todd presented a purchase order for three street lights that need to be replaced and will now 
match the other lights in town. The lights are located by the new clinic. The city will pay for one 

of the lights and then receive a reimbursement for two of them by the clinic directly.  It was 

moved by Councilmember Ator, seconded by Councilmember Peterson to authorize a 

purchase order in the amount of $12,630.77 to General Pacific for street lighting 

improvements. Motion Carried 5-0.

SHORELINE MANAGEMENT 
PLAN

Todd discussed the shoreline management plan and how we need to set up a public meeting 
to discuss the plan. Todd will set up a work session before the next council meeting at 6:30 
pm. 

CITY COUNCIL TOUR OF THE 
CITY FACILITIES

Todd Baun would like to take the Council around town on a "field trip" to see the city facilities 
and work sites. He believes it will help them to understand what functions the city provides 
and how the infrastructure works. He would like to set up two groups for an afternoon. Todd 
will provide some dates to the Council.



CHEHALIS TRIBAL JAIL 
CONTRACT

Chief Crumb contacted the tribe to set up a visitation so the officers can see the facility and 

review how they process prisoners. It was moved by Councilmember Ator, seconded by 

Councilmember Orffer to adopt the Chehalis Tribal Jail Service Agreement. Motion 

Carried 5-0.

3RD STREET WATER LINE 
CONTACT AND SCOPE

Todd Baun is asking the Council to consider authorizing Skillings Connolly to provide final 
design, construction documents and construction administration to replace the existing 
asbestos cement waterline on the west side of 3rd Street from Main Street to Oak Street and 

to approve a time extension for completion. It was moved by Councilmember Vessey, 

seconded by Councilmember Peterson to authorize the Mayor to sign a contract with 

Skillings Connolly to provide final design, construction documents and construction 

administration for the 3rd Street water line replacement, not to exceed $45,661.00 and 

to authorize a time extension. Motion Carried 5-0.

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
MEETING DATES

Todd Baun set a schedule for the Finance Committee to meet. The first meeting is scheduled 
for January 29th at 3:00 pm. The future dates will be confirmed as the Council has time to 
review their schedules.

GHCOG REPRESENTATIVE 
APPOINTMENT

Each year, the Grays Harbor Council of Governments asks the City to appoint a 
representative to attend meetings on behalf of the City. Chris Vessey has experience working 
with them and is happy to be the representative for the City of McCleary. Todd or Mayor 

Schiller can fill in as the alternate, when needed. It was moved by Councilmember Orffer, 

seconded by Councilmember Peterson to appoint Chris Vessey as the City 

representative for the Grays Harbor Council of Governments. Motion Carried 5-0.

PERMISSIVE USE PERMIT - 
VESSEY

Chris Vessey requested a renewal of his permissive use permit at 604 W. Ash Street in 
McCleary. His previous permit allowed him to maintain the City's right of way (ROW) around 

his house. For many years, he has maintained the ROW and kept it in great condition. It was 

moved by Councilmember Orffer, seconded by Councilmember Peterson to authorize 

the Permissive Use Permit for Chris Vessey at 604 W. Ash Street, with no annual 

monetary amount and no expiration date to the permit. Motion Carried 4-0 with 

Councilmember Vessey abstaining.

CITY MISSION, VISION & 
GOALS

Mayor Schiller wants the Council to begin discussing what is the vision for the future of 
McCleary. We need to come up with a strategic plan for growth and to create a mission and 
vision for our future. He wants to include the community so they can offer their ideas and 
suggestions. This will be a focus of the Council as we move forward this year.

ELECTRICAL RATE STUDY 
PROPOSALS

Todd Baun has scheduled meetings with two companies that are proposing rate studies for 
the City. Councilmember Ator is interested in also having a rate study on all the other utilities 
(water, sewer and electrical) to help in our true vision. Tabled until after the presentations.

STORMWATER RATE FOR 2016 Tabled until the Finance Committee reviews the study.

CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION Mayor Schiller wants to re-establish the Civil Service Commission. The last time there was 
any activity with the commissioners was in 2013. He would like to have the Council consider 
appointing new commissioners at the next meeting. Staff will add the vacancy information to 
the city website. 

E-911 BOARD Mayor Schiller appointed Todd Baun as the City representative to attend the board meetings 
and bring back updates and changes to the Council. 

APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS Accounts Payable vouchers/checks approved were 40474 - 40522 including EFT's in the 
amount of $168,525.95 and 40524 - 40593 including EFT's in the amount of $56,198.06.

Payroll checks approved were 40316 - 40398 including EFT's in the amount of $147,644.44 
and 40447 - 40592 including EFT's in the amount of $226,690.19.

It was moved by Councilmember Ator, seconded by Councilmember Peterson to 

approve the vouchers. Motion Carried 5-0.

EXECUTIVE SESSION None.

PUBLIC COMMENT Chris Vessey will be gone at the next meeting, and possibly the one after, and asked to be 
excused from both meetings.



MEETING ADJOURNED It was moved by Councilmember Ator, seconded by Councilmember Peterson to 

adjourn the meeting at 8:25 pm. The next meeting will be Wednesday, January 27, 2016 

at 7:00 pm. Motion Carried 5-0.

Approved by Mayor Brent Schiller and Clerk-Treasurer Wendy Collins.















STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor Schiller 

From: Todd Baun, Director of Public Works 

Date: January 22, 2016 

Re: Current Non-Agenda Activity 

 

    

 

 

Greater Grays Harbor an UW interns meeting 

 

Greater Grays Harbor and their interns from University of Washington will be meeting at 

City Hall on Friday, February 5th, at 9:00 AM.  The main purpose of this meeting is to get 

advisement and strategies for the City to become a more economic presence in Grays 

Harbor.    

 

City Council Tour Date and Time 

 

Please let me know what date and time would work for everyone to go on this tour of the 

City.   

 

 

 

 

 

Tab C 



STAFF REPORT 

 

To: Mayor and Council 

From: Todd Baun- Director of Public Works 

Date: January 22nd, 2016 

Re: Electrical Rate Study   

 

 

On January 22nd, 2016, the city reviewed presentations and conducted interviews of 2 

consulting firms to complete our Electrical Rate Study.   Both have offices in the Seattle 

area.   Both the firms are highly qualified and more than capable to perform and complete 

our Electrical Rate Study.  Their presentations and interviews all went well and made it a 

difficult choice for the reviewers. 

 

The 2 firms that we interviewed were the following: 

  

 FCS Group 

 EES Consulting 

 

Based on our scoring criteria for the interviews and presentations, we all agree that FCS 

Group would be the best fit for us on this Electrical Rate Study.   

        

Staff Recommendation:   
 

Ben Blankenship, Larry Peterson, Lori Ann and I reviewed all of the firm’s information 

and based on our rating criteria, we have come to the conclusion that FCS Group would 

be the firm to enter into contract negotiations with. 

 

Action Requested: 

 

Please allow the city to move forward with FCS to the next steps of the process.  They 

will be as follows: 

 

The City and FCS will meet to ensure thorough understanding of the scope of work, FCS 

with then submit a proposal and once the proposal is satisfactory to both parties, we can 

then get an agreement finalized.  The rate study work will then start after the agreement is 

finalized. 

 

 

Tab D 









 

 

 

 

 

 

 ORDINANCE NO. __________ 

 

 

 AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO GOVERNMENTAL 

ADMINISTRATION, ADDING A NEW CHAPTER TO 

TITLE 17 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE, PROVIDING 

FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 

 R E C I T A L S: 

 

  1.  The City is organized under the provisions of 

RCW Title 35A, the Optional Municipal Code.  As a result, it 

has been granted a broad scope of authority in terms of its 

operational authority. 

  2.  Discussions have been ongoing in relation to the 

use of development agreements to provide both the City and the 

property owner a method to achieve proper land use and to take 

into consideration the need for predictability in terms of the 

regulations to be applied during the course of a development. 

  3.  The City is authorized to utilize the 

development agreement process pursuant to the provisions of 

RCW 36.70B.170 and wishes to formally exercise that authority. 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED AS FOLLOWS BY THE 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF McCLEARY: 

  SECTION I: Authorization of Development Agreements:  



 

 

  As provided by the provisions of RCW 36.70B.170, the 

City may enter into a development agreement with a person, as 

defined in Section 1.04.010 MMC, as now existing or hereafter 

amended or succeeded, having ownership or control of real 

property within its jurisdiction.  The City may enter into a 

development agreement for real property outside its boundaries 

as part of a proposed annexation or a service agreement.  A 

development agreement approved by the City shall set forth the 

development standards and other provisions that shall apply to 

and govern and vest the development, use, and mitigation of 

the development of the real property for the duration 

specified in the agreement.  A development agreement shall be 

consistent with applicable development regulations adopted by 

the City as of the time of approval of the Agreement or, if so 

provided by the Agreement, in effect at a later date subject 

to the following exceptions: 

  A.  If applicable federal or state law, rule, or 

regulation mandate the utilization of other standards, those 

standards shall apply. 

  B.  In recognition of the City’s duties to protect 

public health and safety, the City reserves the authority to 



 

 

impose new or different regulations to the extent required by 

a serious threat to the public health and safety. 

  SECTION II.  Development Agreements - Effect:  

Unless amended or terminated, a development agreement is 

enforceable during its term by a party to the agreement.  A 

development agreement and the development standards referenced 

in the agreement govern during the term of the agreement, or 

for all or that part of the build-out period specified in the 

agreement.  

  A. A development agreement may not be subject to an 

amendment to a zoning ordinance, development standard, 

regulation, a new zoning ordinance, development standard, or 

regulations adopted after the effective date of the agreement.    

  B.  Any permit or approval issued by the city after 

the execution of the development agreement and during the 

agreement’s term must be consistent with the development 

agreement.   

  SECTION III.  Development Agreements - Public 

Hearing:      A.  Notwithstanding other procedural 

requirements of this title, the City shall only approve a 

development agreement by ordinance or resolution after a public 



 

 

hearing by the City Council or, if it deems appropriate to do 

so, a hearing before the Hearing Examiner.   

  1.  Notice of the public hearing shall be made by 

publishing in the local paper, a minimum of six days prior to 

the hearing, the time, date, and location of the hearing, and a 

general description of the location and proposal. 

  2.  If the hearing is held by the Hearing Examiner, 

the Hearing Examiner shall submit a written report to the 

Council containing findings, conclusions, and recommendations. 

  a. Upon receipt, the city council shall set a date 

for a public meeting to review the Hearing Examiner’s report 

not less than fifteen or more than thirty days after receipt of 

the recommendation, such receipt being deemed to occur at its 

first regular meeting following tendering of it by the issuer.   

   b. Unless otherwise required by law or decided 

by the council, the meeting before the council shall be in the 

nature of a closed record hearing. The city council shall have 

the authority to approve, disapprove, or modify the 

recommendations of the Hearing Examiner as to the provisions of 

the development agreement under consideration. 



 

 

    B.  If the development agreement relates to a project 

permit application, the provisions of Chapter 36.70C RCW shall 

apply to the appeal of the decision on the development 

agreement. 

  SECTION IV:  Development Agreements - Recording & 

Binding Effect:  A development agreement shall be recorded with 

the real property records of Grays Harbor County.  During the 

term of the development agreement, the agreement is binding on 

the parties and their successors, including the City, if the 

City assumes jurisdiction through incorporation or annexation 

of the area covering the property covered by the development 

agreement.  

  SECTION V: Codification: 

  Sections I through IV of this Ordinance shall 

constitute a new chapter in Title 17 of the McCleary Municipal 

Code 

  SECTION VI: Severability: 

  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or 

phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid 

or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the 

validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.  The 



 

 

Council hereby declares that it would have passed this 

Ordinance and each section, subsection, sentence, clause, and 

phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more 

sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, or phrases had been 

declared invalid or unconstitutional, and if for any reason 

this Ordinance should be declared invalid or unconstitutional, 

then the original ordinance or ordinances shall be in full 

force and effect.   

  SECTION VII: Effective Date: 

  This Ordinance shall take effect upon the fifth day 

following date of publication of this ordinance of a summary 

thereof. 

  SECTION VIII:  Corrections by the Clerk-treasurer or 

Code Reviser.  Upon approval of the Mayor and City Attorney, 

the Clerk-treasurer and the Code Reviser are authorized to make 

necessary corrections to this ordinance, including the 

correction of clerical errors, references to other local, 

state, or federal laws, codes, rules, or regulations, or 

ordinance number and section/subsection numbering. 

  PASSED THIS ________ DAY OF ________________________, 

2015, by the City Council of the City of McCleary, and signed 



 

 

in approval therewith this ________ day of ___________________, 

2015. 

     CITY OF McCLEARY: 

     __________________________________ 

     BRENT SCHILLER, Mayor pro tem 

 

ATTEST: 

______________________________________ 

WENDY COLLINS, Clerk-Treasurer 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_______________________________________ 

DANIEL O. GLENN, City Attorney 

 

 

STATE OF WASHINGTON   ) 

      : ss. 

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY   ) 

 

  I, WENDY COLLINS, being the duly appointed Clerk-

Treasurer of the City of McCleary, do certify that I caused to 



 

 

have published in a newspaper of general circulation in the 

City of McCleary a true and correct summary of Ordinance Number 

_________ and that said publication was done in the manner 

required by law.  I further certify that a true and correct 

copy of the summary of Ordinance Number _________, as it was 

published, is on file in the appropriate records of the City of 

McCleary.   

 

 

    

 _______________________________________ 

     WENDY COLLINS 

 

  SIGNED AND SWORN to before me this _______ day of 

______________________________, 2015, by WENDY COLLINS. 

 

 

 

    

 _______________________________________ 

     NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR THE STATE OF 



 

 

     WASHINGTON, Residing at: 

     My appointment expires: 
























